
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time: Tuesday, July 11, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 


Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82513982697?pwd=ZUdKUVN4d1RqbERWR1h5UURHRTBuUT09 


           Meeting ID: 825 1398 2697 Passcode: 557187 
          One tap mobile +13126266799,,82513982697#,,,,*557187# US (Chicago)  
    


In-person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 
          321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  
 
The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981 or on TDS 
Channel 12.  WSTO TV App is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android and iOS. 
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, 
Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher, Vacant (2) 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF THE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A 
QUORUM (SEVEN). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to 
attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@cityofstoughton.com 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
1.  Roll Call  
 
2.  Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
 
3.  Public Comment Period: 


 If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form and submit 
it by 6:30 p.m. on July 11, 2023. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com. 
 


4. Communications and Presentations: 
 
5.  Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – June 27, 2023 
       B.  Committee Minutes and Reports:  
 Finance (6/13/23); Public Safety Committee (5/24/23) 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  


Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at 
the time and location given below. 







       C.  R-111-2023 Confirmation of the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to Non-Standing    
 Boards, Committees and Commissions 
      D.   R-112-2023 Approving the Mayor's Citizen Appointments to Standing Committees 
   
OLD BUSINESS 


6. O-21-2023 Amend Section 70-176 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to parking prohibited at all 
times on the northside of West Wilson St. 40 feet west from Lincoln Avenue (Public Safety Committee 
recommended approval 5-0 on May 24, 2023)                                                          SECOND READING 


7.  R-105-2023 Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy 


NEW BUSINESS 


8. Discussion and possible action – City of Stoughton aldermanic appointment questionnaire 


9 R-113-2023 Magnolia Springs wetland and woodland restoration plan (Finance Committee recommended 
approval 7-0 on June 27, 2023) 


10. R-114-2023 Naming of Teigen Farm Park in Magnolia Springs development (Community Affairs/Council 
Policy Committee recommended approval 7-0 on June 6, 2023) 


11. Discussion and possible action regarding timing of check issuance to Stoughton Area Community 
Foundation of American Rescue Plan Act funds 


12 R-115-2023 Acceptance of Tax Incremental Districts financial statements 12-31-2022 (Finance Committee 
recommended approval 7-0 on June 27, 2023) 


ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 
services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82513982697?pwd=ZUdKUVN4d1RqbERWR1h5UURHRTBuUT09 
 
Meeting ID: 825 1398 2697 Passcode: 557187 
One tap mobile +13126266799,,82513982697#,,,,*557187# US (Chicago)  
Dial by your location 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 







• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
 
Meeting ID: 825 1398 2697 
Passcode: 557187 
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdH13ojENW 
 
 








Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time: Tuesday, June 27, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, 
Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher, Rachel Venegas 


 
CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Christen called roll and noted 11 alders present. 
 
Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
Mayor Swadley stated the meeting had been properly noticed. 
 
Public Comment Period: 
None 
 
Communications and Presentations: 
Alder Venegas informed the Council that she would be resigning effective June 30.  She is moving within the 
city and could no longer represent her current district. 
Mayor Swadley informed the council of the need for an alder to fill Venegas’s vacancy on the Sustainability 
Committee. 
He also noted that a few alders would be necessary on the newly formed DEI Subcommittee 
 
Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – June 13, 2023 
       B.   Committee Minutes and Reports: Finance (5/23/23); Food Pantry Committee (4/12/23); Plan    
 Commission (5/8/23); Public Works (5/18/23); RDA (5/10/23); Tree Commission (4/10/23) 
       C.  R-103-2023 Confirmation of the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to Non-Standing    
 Boards, Committees and Commissions  
       D.   R-104-2023 Approving the Mayor's Citizen Appointments to Standing Committees 
 
Motion by Jenson, second by Majewski to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 11-0.  
   
OLD BUSINESS 
None 


NEW BUSINESS 


O-21-2023 Amend Section 70-176 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to parking prohibited at all 
times on the northside of West Wilson St. 40 feet west from Lincoln Avenue  


Jenson read O-21-2023 Amend Section 70-176 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to parking 
prohibited at all times on the northside of West Wilson St. 40 feet west from Lincoln Avenue as a first reading.  
It will be back before council on July 11. 







 


O-22-2023 Repeal Section 2-583 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to the Investment Policy  


Schumacher read O-22-2023 Repeal Section 2-583 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to the 
Investment Policy as a first reading. 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to waive the second reading.  Motion carried 11-0, roll call vote. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve O-22-2023 Repeal Section 2-583 of the Stoughton Code 
of Ordinances, Related to the Investment Policy. Motion carried 11-0.  


 R-105-2023 Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Majewski to approve R-105-2023 Amend City of Stoughton Investment 
Policy. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-106-2023 City of Stoughton meal reimbursement indexed to US General Service Administration rates  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-106-2023 City of Stoughton meal reimbursement 
indexed to US General Service Administration rates. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-107-2023 Repeal City of Stoughton Interest on Donated Funds Policy. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-107-2023 Repeal City of Stoughton Interest on Donated 
Funds Policy.  Motion carried 11-0. 


 R-108-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for Library HVAC system evaluation. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Hirsch to approve R-108-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for Library 
HVAC system evaluation.  Motion carried 11-0. 


 R-109-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for Sustainability Committee. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Hirsch to approve R-109-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for 
Sustainability Committee.  Motion carried 11-0. 


R-110-2023 Approving Food Pantry Mission Statement  


Motion by Hirsch, second by Payton to approve R-110-2023 Approving Food Pantry Mission Statement.  Food 
Pantry Chairperson Mike Heger provided the background behind the current mission statement and the need to 
amend it.  Motion carried 11-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding the aldermanic seat vacancy in District 1 due to the  
resignation of Alder Rachel Venegas. 


Motion by Jenson, second by Hirsch to follow the same timeline set forth for Alder raff’s resignation for 
Alder Venegas’s resignation.  Publish for 3 weeks and interview/seat the candidate if approved at the 
July 25 council meeting.  The approved candidate’s term would fill the seat until April 2024 and then 
could seek election for the remaining term of 1 year.  


ADJOURNMENT 







Motion by Venagas, second by Majewski to adjourn.  Motion carried 11-0.  7:54 p.m. 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


Candee Christen 
City Clerk 
 



















 
1. Call to Order-Certification of compliance with open meetings law 


Chair Jenson called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m.  He stated the meeting had been 
properly noticed. 


2. Communication 
Chief Jenks wanted to thank the PSC for the support of the drone purchase and the EOC.  It 
was used for the Syttende Mai event, the live feed was good practice and the license plate 
reader worked well and will be used for investigations.  Use of the EOC was not under 
pressure so was good to work through questions. 


3. Approval of April 26, 2023 Public Safety Committee minutes  
Motion by Payton, second by Suess Charleston to approve the April 26, 2023 minutes.  
Motion carried 5-0. 


 
OLD BUSINESS 


None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 


9. Catfish River Music Festival Special Event License 
Chair Jenson moved item 9 to the first action item.  Motion by Suess Charleston, second by 
Ligocki to recommend approval to council the Special Event application for the Catfish River 
Music Festival.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
4. Alcohol Retailer Information Discussion 
Pellett reviewed the draft agenda for an informational meeting she is setting up.  Time TBD but 
in the afternoon and not on a Monday.  
 
5. Liquor License Resolution 


a. Aldi 
b. American Legion Post 59 
c. Argo Craft Tavern 
d. Ashlie’s LLC 
e. Banushi’s Bar & Grill 
f. Bear Arms 
g. Best Plaza 
h. BP 
i. Caliber Coffee 
j. Cheeser’s 
k. Dairyland Desserts LLC 
l. Deak’s Pub & Grill 
m. Drikke DBA The Lageret 
n. El Rio Grande 
o. Fahrenheit 364 


 
 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 
Wednesday, May 24, 2023, at 6:00 p.m.  
Held virtually and in person 
 
Members present: Greg Jenson (Chair), Jean Ligocki, Tricia Suess Charleston, Daniel Payton, Tim Swadley (ex-officio) 
Absent: Eric Quam 
Staff present: Chief Jenks and Clerk Christen 
Others: APC Teressa Pellett 







p. Famous Yeti’s 
q. Gemini Games 
r. Koffee Kup 
s. Kwik Trip 738 
t. Kwik Trip 739 
u. Kwik Trip 893 
v. Kwik Trip 967 
w. La Cantina 
x. Mandt Community Center 
y. Mershon’s Cidery 
z. Pancake Café 
aa. Pick N Save 
bb. Roxy’s Restobar 
cc. Stoughton Merchants 
dd. Stoughton Opera House Friends Association 
ee. Stoughton Spirits 
ff. Tailgater’s of Stoughton 
gg. The Feiring 
hh. The Revival 
ii. Tru by Hilton 
jj. VFW 
kk. VFW Motherpost 328 
ll. Viking Brew Pub 
mm. Viking Lanes 
nn. Walgreens 
oo. Walmart 
pp. Water Street Tavern 
qq. Wendigo 
rr. Whatever Bar 


Motion by Payton, second by Suess Charleston to recommend approval to Council the Liquor 
License renewal.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
6. Outdoor Consumption Resolution 


Motion by Suess Charleston, second by Ligocki to recommend approval to Council the Outdoor 
Consumption permits.  Argot Craft Tavern is approved pending approval by Zoning.  Motion 
carried 5-0. 


 
7. Sidewalk Café Resolution 
 
Motion by Suess Charleston, second by Payton to recommend to Council the Sidewalk Café 
applicants.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
8. Page Street Mart New Liquor Application 
 
Motion by Payton, second by Ligocki to recommend to Council the application for 
Neighborhood Liquor (formerly the Food Pantry).  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
10. Sean Anderson Liquor License non-approval 
The applicant was not present as required for discussion of the application.  Chair Jenson 
recommended the application be tabled until next month to allow legal counsel to attend.  Motion 
by Payton, second by Ligocki.  Motion carried 5-0. 







11. Coopers Causeway Parking 
Brief discussion, Ligocki explained the request to be an agenda item, pedestrian safety being a 
big concern. Suess Charleston noted she uses it and does not feel there is a safety issue. 
 
12. a. Wilson Street parking 
Chief Jenks reviewed the photo requesting no parking at the intersection.  (#91) 
 
12. Maple Court Parking 
Discussion followed with the recommendation to paint yellow for no parking 70 feet at the 
intersection. (#92) 


Motion by Ligocki, second by Suess Charleston recommends approval of prohibited parking at 
all times for item #91 but does not recommend approval of item #92.  Item #92 should be 
removed from the amendment to the ordinance Sec. 70-176.  Motion carried 5-0.0 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  
 ~Coopers Causeway 
 ~Antiquated language in ordinances section 14 
 ~Downtown parking 
13. Adjournment 
Motion by Suess Charleston, second by Payton to adjourn. Motion carried 5-0. 7:24 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Candee Christen 
City Clerk 
  
      







RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Confirming the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to Non-Standing Boards, Committees, and 
Commissions for the 2023-2024 Term, Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. 
 
Committee 


 


 
Not applicable  


Fiscal Impact: Zero 
 
File Number: R-111-2023


 
Date 
I d d


July 11, 2023 


 WHEREAS, the Mayor has submitted aldermanic appointments for non-standing 
boards, committees, and commissions for the 2023-2024 term; and,


 WHEREAS, the appointments are as follows: 


  Sustainability Committee
  Lisa Reeves (District 2) 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of 
Stoughton that the proper city official(s) confirm the Mayor's aldermanic appointments to non-
standing boards, committees and commissions.


  
 
 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 



cchristen

Cross-Out







RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Confirming the Mayor’s Citizen Appointments to Standing Committees for the 2023-2024 
Term, Pursuant to 2-67 of the Municipal Code. 
 
Committee 


 
Not applicable 


Fiscal Impact: Zero 
 
File Number: R-112-2023


 
Date 
I d d


July 11, 2023 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has submitted citizen appointments for standing committees for the 
2023-2024 Term; and, 


WHEREAS, the appointments are as follows: 


Sustainability Committee


Rachel Venegas


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 
that the proper city official(s) confirm the Mayor’s citizen appointments to standing committees.  


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:         Override Vote 





		05a Council minutes - June 27, 2023.pdf

		05b Committee minutes.pdf

		01 Finance Committee minutes (signed) 06-13-2023.pdf

		02 Public Safety minutes 05-24-23.pdf



		05c R-111-2023 Approving the Mayor's Alder Appointments to nonstanding committees.pdf

		05d R-112-2023 Approving the Mayor's Citizen Appointments to Standing Committees.pdf

		5d Teresa Lindfors applicaiton for DEI_Redacted.pdf










T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\06-27-2023\07 O-21-2023 Pub 1 No Parking 70-176 Wilson.doc 1 
0623231134


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMOM COUNCIL 


Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 
1. No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose
of ….. (91)  On the northside of West Wilson Street 40 feet west from Lincoln Avenue 


Committee Action:   Public Safety approved 5-0 (May 24, 2023) 
Fiscal Impact:       0 
File Number: O-21-2023 Date Introduced: June 27, 2023 First reading 


July 11, 2023 Second reading 


The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as 
follows: 


Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 
No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of 
and while actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers 
and while the vehicle is attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in 
case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or 
parts of highways: 


(91) On the northside of West Wilson Street 40 feet west from Lincoln Avenue


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a 
meeting on __________, 2023.  


Dates  


Council Adopted: 


Mayor Approved:  
Tim Swadley, Mayor  
Published:  
Attest: Candee Christen, City Clerk 















 





		07 O-21-2023 Pub 1 No Parking 70-176 Wilson

		07a Pub 1a Wilson Street Images






 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 06/13/2023 
                                                             


 
Fiscal Impact:   None                               


 
File Number: 


 
R-105-2023 Date 07/11/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton last clarified the provisions of Ordinance Section 3.12 
Investment Policy with R-52-12 on April 24, 2012; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton ordinance relating to the investment policy was 
subsequently renumbered as Ordinance Section 2.586 Investment Policy; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Common Council repealed Ordinance Section 2.586 
Investment Policy on June 27, 2023 with O-22-2023; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller has noticed that (a) the prior policy did 
not conform to certain sections of the Wisconsin statutes, certain sections of the policy have not 
been followed and (c) certain sections of the policy need to be expanded upon; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that the investment policy 


clarification as detailed with R-51-12 on April 24, 2022 be replaced with the attached investment 
policy; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer and Utilities Finance 


Manager have drafted the attached policy based upon the Best Practices of the Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the policy has been reviewed by the City Attorney for 
conformity with the Wisconsin Statutes, and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the revised 


City of Stoughton Investment Policy to the City of Stoughton Common Council on May 15, 2023 
by a vote of 4-1; 


 
 
 
 







 


 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the investment policy adopted with R-
52-12 shall be replaced by the attached investment policy. 


 
Note:  The Common Council packet for original approval of this resolution on June 27, 2023 did 
not include the investment policy referenced above. 
 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







 
 
 
 


 


Introduction	


The timely deposit and investment of public funds is an important and integral part of any cash 
management program. In order to maximize cash available for investments, all city departments 
shall remit funds at least weekly to the Finance Department’s office. 


This Investment Policy is intended for the use and guidance of the designated officials with 
investment authority.  


Delegation	of	Authority	


Pursuant to Section 66.0603(2), the Common Council has the authority to delegate investment 
authority to invest and reinvest money of the city, to sell or exchange securities so purchased and 
to provide for the safekeeping of such securities. Responsibility for the operation of the 
investment program is hereby delegated to the Investment Team, which consists of the Director 
of Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer and Utilities Finance Manager, and shall act in 
accordance with established written procedures and internal controls for the operation of the 
investment program consistent with this investment policy.  


At least two of the three members of the team must agree before any decision can be made.  


This policy shall be reviewed annually by the Finance Committee, and recommendations to 
amend the existing ordinance shall be presented to the Common Council for its consideration.  


Statement	of	Purpose	


The purpose of this Investment Policy is to establish guidelines for investments which are broad 
enough to allow the Investment Team to function properly within the parameters of its 
responsibility and authority. It is also intended to be specific enough to establish a prudent set 
of basic procedures to assure that investment assets are adequately safeguarded. It assures that 
the fundamental principle concerning any investment program involving public moneys has four 
basic ingredients: legality, safety, liquidity and yield.  


General	Objectives	


The primary objective, in priority order, of investment activities shall be: 


1. Safety – The safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of 
capital in the overall portfolio. The goal will be to mitigate 


•  credit risk (risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer), and 
•  interest rate risk (risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fail 


due to change in the market interest rates). 


2. Liquidity	 -- The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all 
operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 


3. Return -- The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a 
market rate of return through budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the 
investment risk constraints of safety and liquidity needs. 


 
	


City	of	Stoughton,	Wisconsin	
Investment	Policy	







Standards	of	Care	


1. Prudence - The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the 
“prudent person rule” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an 
overall portfolio. 


a. Prudent Person Rule-Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under 
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and 
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but 
for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the 
probable income to be derived. 


2. Ethics	and	Conflicts	of	Interest	-- Investment officials and employee involved in the 
investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with 
the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair 
their ability to make impartial decisions. 


a. Investment Officials and employees involved in the investment process shall further 
disclose and personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of the investment portfolio. 


3. Relief	of	liability -- Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, the Investment Team 
members who deposits public money in any authorized public depository, in compliance 
with Wisconsin Statutes Sec. 34.05 is, under the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes Sec. 
34.06, relieved of any liability for any loss of public monies which results from the failure 
of any public depository to repay the public depository the full amount of its deposits, 
thus causing a loss as defined in Wisconsin Statutes Sec. 34.01(2). 


Overall	Responsibility	for	Cash	Management	and	Investments	


Effective cash management involves controlling cash from the time it is received until it is 
disbursed. It requires the availability of accurate information on a timely basis.  Both the City 
Treasurer and the Utilities Finance Manager shall be delegated the day-to-day responsibility for 
the overall financial operation to determine cash availability and needs. 


1. Internal	Controls	 ‐‐	The investment team shall establish a system of internal controls 
which shall be reviewed by the independent auditor on an annual basis. The controls shall 
be designed to prevent loss of public funds due to fraud, error and misrepresentation by 
another party or imprudent actions by an employee or employees of the City.  


2. Investment	 ‐‐	 The Investment Team may purchase securities that are permissible 
investments from money in the Investment Team’s custody, which is not required for the 
immediate needs of the City, as the Investment Team deems wise and expedient. The 
investment activity of Wisconsin public funds is governed by Section 66.0603(1m) and 
other sections of the Wisconsin Statutes as follows: “A county, city, village, town, school 
district, drainage district, technical college district or other governing board other than a local 
professional football stadium district board created under subch. IV of ch. 229, may invest 
any of its funds . . .” in accordance with Section 66.0603(lm). 


3. 	Reporting -- The Finance Committee and Utilities Committee shall consult quarterly with the 
Investment Team regarding such investments. The Investment Team shall provide the 
Committee with a quarterly detailed list of all the investment portfolio holdings.  


The Investment Team shall communicate with financial institutions and/or investment 
advisors and avail itself of other financial information on current or pending market 







conditions in making its decision on rates and maturities as well as the securities to be 
purchased. In making all investment decisions, the Investment Team shall endeavor to 
achieve the overall investment objectives of the City.  


4. Redemption	-- The Investment Team shall periodically redeem the securities in which City 
money has been invested pursuant to section (2) Investment so that the proceeds may be 
applied to the purpose for which the original purchase money was designated or placed in 
the City Treasury.  


5. Deposits	 --	Any federal or state-chartered bank or credit union approved by the Common 
Council at their annual organizational meeting shall be the working financial institutions. The 
Director of Finance/Comptroller and Utilities Finance Manager have the authority to add 
working financial institutions with notice to the Finance Committee within 30 days after 
adding such institution 


6. Investment	Advisors	--	The Investment Team may utilize investment advisors/brokers as 
approved by the City of Stoughton Finance Committee or Utilities Committee. 


7. Safekeeping	 --	 For portfolios with outside investment advisors, the City will use an 
independent third-party custodian, in order to segregate the functions of choosing 
investments from physical custody and record-keeping. The custodian shall keep 
possession of all funds and securities; collect income and the proceeds of sales, maturities 
and redemptions; transact purchases; and distribute funds as directed by the City. 


8. Post	issue	debt	compliance – This policy is not to conflict with either the terms of the debt 
obligation or Internal Revenue Service arbitrage rules for borrowed money proceeds. 


Accounts	and	Records	


It shall be the responsibility of the designated Investment Team to establish sufficient records 
and accounts to: detail each investment as to purchase date, cost, maturity date, yield and 
market value, 


 provide any necessary internal controls, 
 any other records that may be required to accurately reflect all investment 


transactions. 
 
Collateralization	of	Funds	
With the passage of Wisconsin Act 25, effective August 1, 1985, there is no longer the overall 
guarantee of public funds by the State. In effect, Act 25 abolished the state deposit guarantee fund. 
It will continue to pledge general purpose revenues under Wis. Stats., 20.144(1)(a), for the 
payment of losses of public deposits until the balance of the appropriation is exhausted. 
However, no payment for a loss in excess of $400,000 for any one public depositor in any 
individual public depository may be made above current FDIC (Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation) levels for deposits in any one institution.  
 
Chapter 34.07 as amended provides that a surety bond or other security may be required of a 
given public depository for any public deposit that exceeds the $400,000 amount guaranteed by 
the State of Wisconsin. 


The City of Stoughton requires collateralization of any deposits exceeding the amounts guaranteed by 
the State of Wisconsin and the FDIC for the primary checking accounts for both the City of Stoughton 
and Stoughton Utilities as well as the payroll checking account during the months of December through 
February due to the large of amounts of fiduciary property tax collection during those months.  







For collateralization, Certificates of Deposits or other investments exceeding the amounts 
currently insured by the State and the FDIC shall be fully secured by obligations of the United 
States Government or its agencies. Such securities shall be delivered to the City or held by an 
independent third party chosen by the City. Substitution of collateral by the independent third 
party shall only be allowed with the written approval of the City’s Investment Team. The market 
value of the collateral shall at all times equal or exceed the principal amount of the certificate of 
deposit. Value of the collateral shall be monitored and market value shall be at or near the bid 
or closing price of the security as quoted in the Wall Street Journal or other recognized pricing 
source. The Investment Team shall be authorized to sign agreements with the Custodial Bank and 
sign for the receipt of any pledged securities. 
 
The City of Stoughton shall not require this collateral for any deposit that exceeds the amounts 
guaranteed by the State and the F.D.I.C for the other months of the year. The rationale for not 
requiring collateralization shall be to either maximize investment returns and/or reduce bank 
fees. The Finance Committee shall periodically review the need for collateralization.  


Responsibility for the administration of the foregoing rests with the Investment Team.  
 
Custodial	Related	Risks	 


1. Custodial credit risk for deposits, when collateralization is required.  
a. Definition: Risk that in the event of the failure of a depository financial 


institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 


b. Related Policy: For those institutions which the City holds deposits and 
investments: 


i. Ensure that security interest in collateral pledged to secure deposits 
and investments are enforceable against the receiver of a failed 
financial institution via: 


1. An agreement in writing 
2. An agreement that was approved by the board of directors of 


the depository or its loan committee, and 
3. An agreement that has been continuously kept as an official 


record of the depository institution since the time of 
execution. 


 
ii. All pledged collateral shall be held at an independent third-party 


institution, and evidenced by a written agreement in an effort to 
satisfy the Uniform Commercial Code (UCC) requirement for control. 


 
2. Custodial credit risk 


a. Definition: Risk that in the event of the failure of a party to a transaction, the 
City will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party.  


b. Related Policy: Accomplished through same policy as Custodial Credit Risk for 
Deposits as above. 


Eligible	Investments	


a. Authorized Investments. Subject to restrictions as may be imposed by law (Section 







66.0603(1m) of Wisconsin State Statutes), funds will only be invested in the following 
securities: 


1. U.S. Treasury Obligations and Government Agency Securities -- Obligations of the United 
States of America, its agencies and instrumentalities, provided that the payment of the 
principal and interest is fully guaranteed by the issuer. 


2. Certificates of Deposit -- Certificates of Deposit and other evidences of deposits from 
credit unions, banks, savings banks, trust companies or savings and loan associations 
which are authorized to transact business in the state, which time deposits mature in 
not more than one year. Any Certificate of Deposit invested in excess of the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation and State Deposit Guaranteed Fund insured amount of 
$500,000, whichever is less, are to be fully collateralized under the specific 
requirements above 


3. General Obligation Bonds or Securities -- General obligation bonds or securities of any 
county, city, drainage district, vocational, technical and adult education district, village, 
town or school district of the state. 
 


4. Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) funds administered by the State of Wisconsin 
Investment Board. 


 
5. Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative (WISC) funds administered by PMA Financial 


Network, LLC. 


6. Repurchase Agreements -- Investment agreements pursuant to which a federal or state 
credit union, federal or state savings and loan association, state bank, savings and trust 
company, mutual savings bank, or national bank in the State of Wisconsin agrees to 
repay funds advanced to it by the issuer, plus interest. Repurchase Agreements are to 
be secured by investment securities fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government. 


7. Open Ended Money Market Funds -- Restricted to investments permitted by Wisconsin 
Statute Section 66.0603(1m)(a)5, limited to a maximum average maturity of 120 
days or less.  This limit will not apply to either LGIP or WISC pool investments. 


8. Highly Rated Commercial Paper -- Commercial paper which may be tendered for a 
purchase at the option of the holder within not more than 270 days of the date acquired 
as permitted by Wisconsin Statute Section 66.0603(1m)(a)4. These securities must be 
rated in the highest or second highest rating category assigned by Standard & Poor’s 
Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or other similar nationally recognized 
rating agency or senior to or on parity with a security of the same issuer which has such 
a rating.  No more than five percent (5%) of the investment portfolio may be commercial 
paper from a single issuer. 


9. Out of State General Obligation Bonds or Securities -- General obligation bonds or 
securities of any county, city, drainage district, vocational, technical and adult education 
district, village, town or school district, if the bond or security has a maturity of seven 
years or less from the date on which it was acquired and, if the bond or security is rated 
in one of the two highest rating categories assigned by Standard & Poor’s Corporation, 
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or other similar nationally recognized rating agency. 







10. Corporate Bonds or Securities. Any bond or security issued by a corporation which has 
a maturity of 7 years or less on the date on which it is acquired, and if that bond or 
security has a rating which is in the highest or 2nd highest rating category assigned by 
Standard & Poor's Corporation, Moody's Investors Service or other similar nationally 
recognized rating agency. No more than five percent (5%) of the investment portfolio 
shall be corporate securities from a single issuer. 


IMPORTANT NOTE: If the credit rating of a security is subsequently downgraded below 
the minimum rating level for a new investment of that security, the Investment Team 
shall evaluate the downgrade on a case-by-case basis, and if applicable, shall obtain the 
recommendation(s) of the assigned Investment Advisor in order to determine if the 
security should be held or sold. The Investment Team will apply the general objectives 
of safety, liquidity, yield and legality in order to make its decision. 


	
Firefighter’s	Pension	Fund	–	Fiduciary	Trust	Fund	
	
The City of Stoughton established a pension plan in 1911 for its volunteer firefighters.  As such, the 
irrevocable fiduciary trust for the Firefighter’s Pension Fund should have a long-term focus.   
 
According to the 2021/2022 actuarial report, the deferred inflows and deferred outflows have 
been amortized from 2017 through 2022 between 7.24 and 7.40 years.  Based upon the restrictions 
of the Wisconsin statutes, investments cannot exceed seven (7) years.   
 
Although annual revenue for fire dues from the State of Wisconsin covers the majority of 
expenditures, the Firefighter’s Pension Board requests maintaining two years of expenditures in 
cash and cash equivalents.  This amount is approximately $50,000 each year. 
 
In addition to the above allowed securities, the Firefighter’s Pension Fund shall strive to: 


a) Retain $100,000 in checking, LGIP pool accounts and/or WISC pool accounts. 
b) Invest 10% of the remaining available balance in eligible investments with maturities 


between 12 and 36 months from the purchase date. 
c) Invest 20% of the remaining available balance in eligible investments with maturities 


between 36 months and 60 months from the purchase date.  
d) Invest 70% of the remaining available balance in eligible investments with the maturities 


between 60 and 84 months from the purchase date. 


Performance	Standards/Evaluation	


The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified within this 
policy. The portfolio should obtain a market average rate of return during a market environment 
of stable interest rates. A series of appropriate benchmarks shall be established against which 
portfolio performance shall be compared on a regular basis. The benchmarks shall be reflective 
of the actual securities being purchased and risks undertaken and the benchmarks shall have a 
similar duration and credit profile as the portfolio. In order to manage interest rate risk, the 
investment portfolio(s) shall be required to keep an effective duration, which is defined as the 
present value of the lifetime cash flows of the City of Stoughton’s investments, in close proximity to 
the assigned benchmark or less if economic conditions merit.  


Reports	


The Investment Team shall provide the Finance Committee and Utilities Committee monthly 
written reports on the general condition of the City’s cash and investments.   


The Investment Advisor shall provide a twelve-month (August 1 – July 31) written report to the 







Finance Committee and Utilities Committee on the City’s investment activity for the reporting 
period and recommendations for improvement to the City’s investment strategy for the next 
reporting period. The report shall be presented at the regular Finance Committee and Utilities 
Committee meetings in August to aid in the subsequent year budget preparation.  


 
 


Adopted INSERT DATE HERE – INSERT RESOLUTION NUMBER HERE 


Amended: 





		08 R-105-2023 Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy.pdf

		08a 3XV0886-Investment Policy v3.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON ALDERMANIC APPOINTMENT QUESTIONNAIRE  


District 4 - Vacant Seat 


 


Name:  Patrick Butler Occupation: Branch Operations Systems Manager, UW Credit Union 


Street Address:  Stoughton WI 53589 E-mail Address:  


Home Phone #:      Cell Phone #:  


 


1) Tell us about your occupation, training and education. Describe the characteristics, qualifications 


and experiences you have that will enable you to do a good job as an Alderperson. 


I am a graduate of UW-Madison with degrees in Political Science and International Relations 


(Finished in 1994).  These degrees were driven by my passion for civic discussion and love of history.  


But they aren’t the best paths for a stable financial career, and so in 1995 I got a job at UW Credit 


Union.  I have worked there ever since.  In my varying roles (I started as a teller and now manage all 


aspects of financial systems for all 31 of our branches state-wide), I have had the opportunity to 


grow in financial and banking expertise, and also have had great opportunity to participate in formal 


leadership training have helped me build people leadership skills.  I helped start and build my 


current department within the credit union from a three-person Branch Help Desk to a 10-person 


Operations department in charge of operations, financial systems and financial hardware for all of 


the credit union branches and locations.  I manage a team of high performing individuals ,and utilize 


knowledge of communication styles, strengths and crucial conversation skills to understand needs of 


my team and our internal customers and membership to build consensus and collaborate for win-


win solutions. 


 


All that said, I am a firm believer that who we are is not dictated solely by where we work or what 


our job entails.  I am a proud Wisconsinite, having been born in La Crosse, lived in Madison during 


and after college, and now live in Stoughton.  I met my wonderful wife Laurie at work, and we 


married in Madison in 2003.  We moved to Stoughton in 2004, in part because I was nostalgic for a 


home life similar to what I experienced, in a suburb (Onalaska is where I grew up), in a nice home 


with a normal-sized yard.  We still live in that home, and watching the neighborhood grow up has 


instilled a love for Stoughton and a desire to see it thrive.  We have an incredible son, Colin, who is 


16 and has only ever known Stoughton as his home.  We’ve participated as parents in all of his youth 


sports (I tried coaching soccer once – total disaster) and have watched him grown as a young man in 


our school system and city.  Colin is a Scout, having started at St Ann’s in Cubs.  I have been an Adult 


Leader in Scouts since then, which has helped teach me patience, and that as difficult as it is to 


wrangle a bunch of kids, sometimes wrangling adults is more challenging.  I am a consensus-builder 


and troubleshooter, and those strengths have helped me in roles as an Adult Leader, including most 


recently as Troop 167 Committee Chair (2018-2022). 


 


These life skills which I have accumulated will assist me in understanding the needs of my district, 


the city, and in building consensus to move Stoughton forward. 







 


 


2) In your opinion, what issues are facing Stoughton today? Please pick one of the issues and tell us 


how you would lead a committee to probable solutions. 


There are several very interesting issues that face the city today from my perspective.   


• Infrastructure, especially the state of our roads, is obvious to anyone that drives in the city.  I 


don’t think that’s unique to Stoughton but is going to be an issue that will need attention 


and significant resourcing. 


• Stoughton is a beautiful city to walk in (Laurie and I walk around town daily), but I would 


love to see some expended networks outside of the streets network. 


• The dam project and revitalizing the downtown will continue to be a point of discussion and 


potential contention.  On the dam I am honestly torn.  As an outdoors enthusiast I see the 


draw of a whitewater park, and I also have a son who is an avid fisherman, and he doesn’t 


support removing the dam for that reason. 


• The biggest issue I see however is how to grow Stoughton.  One of the more upsetting bits of 


news we’ve heard recently is that the School District has had to part with 11 staff members, 


including teachers/assistants.  This is an obvious and sadly predictable offshoot of shrinking 


enrollment.  Schools exist for the purpose of teaching kids, and if there are fewer kids year-


over-year, these types of events are inevitable.  But that is itself an outcome of stagnation in 


Stoughton’s growth.  Stoughton hasn’t grown much if at all in the time I’ve lived here.  I’m 


not being judgmental in that I don’t believe this can be attributed to any deliberate or 


mistaken decisions.  We can’t as a city simply be a bedroom community for Madison, we’re 


too far out and risk losing our unique identity if we try to be Madison’s southern community.  


And though I love our Norwegian heritage (1/8 Norwegian and proud of it!), that can’t 


sustain us either.  If given the opportunity to lead, I believe this is the area to focus on.  I 


believe the solution to organic growth for Stoughton lies in the following: 


o A strong jobs market within the city itself. We’re doing a good job of that with 


Stoughton Trailers and the new cheese maker, and we need to continue to work with 


existing employers to learn how to sell Stoughton to potential suitors. 


o Make Stoughton a destination for young families, especially with children.  Part of 


that requires a strong starter home market.  One of the reasons we chose Stoughton 


was because we didn’t want to live in apartments or townhouses, we wanted a 


house with a yard but anywhere that was affordable to us near to Madison would be 


in a more dangerous neighborhood.  Stoughton fit the bill, even though it created a 


serious commute for us.  Unfortunately, I don’t see that market in Stoughton now.  If 


you can afford a 400k+ home, we have plenty.  And we have low-end affordable 


housing.  But middle-market housing is hard to come by.  We need to continue to 


work with developers to fill that market. 


o Continue to ensure that Stoughton remains safe.  I am the son of a firefighter, and 


public safety is a passion of mine.  If given an opportunity to serve on a committee 


that covers Police and Fire, it would be a dream come true.   







o Make sure that Stoughton has amenities that draw people in.  This is part of what 


excites me about the proposed development of the former Linnerud parcel by 


Stoughton Trailers.  Stoughton Trailers has done some of the legwork in finding out 


from their employees why they aren’t choosing Stoughton to live.  We as a City need 


to collaborate with them and other employers to understand opportunities. 


 


 


3) If there was an issue on the table that you agreed with but a majority of your constituents 


disagreed with, how would you vote and why? 


My perception is that many of the most contentious issues that Stoughton has faced in recent 


history have been resolved, and the tempers that flew during some of the big box discussions have 


cooled.  I feel that the council has focused on city issues as opposed to using the “soapbox” to 


advocate for unrelated other hot button issues.  From my perspective this is good, as I am the 


product of a time when people were able to disagree amicably.  Consensus building is very important 


to me.  I am a center-right person who comes from a labor union left family, went to a university that 


is far to my left in a County that is far to my left.  I feel confident in my ability to build consensus.   


As an alder, my role would be to represent both my constituents and also make decisions that affect 


the city as a whole, regardless of affiliations or viewpoints. While it's important to take into account 


the opinions of my constituents, there may be times when my duty extends beyond following the 


majority opinion. In those situations, I would carefully weigh several factors before making a 


decision. My nature is to thoroughly research and analyze the issue, seeking input from subject 


matter experts and stakeholders. This would help me gain a comprehensive understanding of the 


potential benefits, drawbacks, and long-term implications of the decision. 


Additionally, I would actively engage in open and honest dialogue and encouraging direct 


communication through various channels. I would make every effort to explain the reasoning behind 


my position, listening attentively to their concerns, and being receptive to alternative viewpoints. 


Ultimately, my decision would be based on a thoughtful evaluation of the available information, the 


potential impact on the city as a whole, and the principles and values that guide my representation. 


While it might not always align with the majority opinion, I would strive to make a well-informed 


decision that I genuinely believe is in the best interest of our city's long-term prosperity, even if it 


requires making difficult choices. 


 


4) Council meetings are the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of each month. In addition, there are at least two 


standing committees you will be assigned to, as well as other meetings, correspondence and 


information needing your attention. Do you anticipate a problem in attending evening meetings or 


fulfilling other time commitments typical to the Alderperson's role. 


In general, I don’t feel this will be a problem, as my job is generally 9-5, and I do have the flexibility 


to work from home on occasion.  I do have an annual conference in October that takes me out of 


town.  My only concern is that I still desire to be active in Scouting, especially while my son is still 







active, and Troop meetings are on Thursday nights.  But I suspect that the Troop and my son will be 


amenable to me missing some to attend to city business.  My son also plays football, so in the fall 


there may be some games that may interfere, depending on how much he plays on Thursday nights 


(Varsity Reserve) vs, Friday nights.  I will have to take a look at that as the schedule becomes clearer 


but doubt it should pose a significant issue. 












CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper City official to enter into an agreement with Heartland 
Ecological Group to complete a Woodland and Wetland Restoration Plan for Magnolia Springs 


Parkland and to use Park Development Fund to fund it. 
 
Committee Action:  Parks & Recreation recommended approval 5-0 on 6/20/2023 


Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 6/27/2023 
 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
$3,500 


 
File Number:  R-113-2023  


 
Date Introduced: 


 
7/11/2023 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 
 


WHEREAS, a wetland and woodland restoration plan is needed for the Magnolia Springs parkland, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City received a proposal from Heartland Ecological Group to complete a wetland and 
woodland restoration plan for $3,500, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Magnolia Springs Development will contribute $407,920 to the Park Development 
Fund for park improvements which can fund the wetland and woodland restoration plan, and  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper City official be 
hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with Heartland Ecological Group to complete 
a woodland and wetland restoration plan for Magnolia Springs parkland and to use the Park 
Development Fund to fund it. 


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
 
            
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







 


Date:   June 14, 2023 


From:   Dan Glynn, Director of Parks & Recreation  


To:   Parks & Recreation Committee, City Council 


Subject: Magnolia Springs Wetland & Woodland Restoration Plan    


 


Background 


The land dedicated for a park in the Magnolia Springs Development includes a pond and established 
woodlands. The ponds and the woodlands were the main reason for the site being selected for the park. 
After visiting the site during the site selection process, much of the area did not look like it was 
maintained with buckthorn present. A Woodland and Wetland Restoration Plan would: 


• Assess existing plant communities (existing site conditions) 
• Recommendations for enhancing existing plant communities  
• Recommendations for restoring newly graded park and corridor areas (linking the habitats 


between the Lowell Park natural area and Magnolia Springs Park natural area utilizing the trail 
corridor) 


• Provide a cost estimate for implementation of the Restoration Plan and three years of 
implementation 


Completing a Wetland and Woodland Restoration Plan was recommended by the Capital Area Regional 
Planning Commission (CARPC) when the development was presented to them.  


Restoration Timeline 


2023: Restoration Plan Development  


2024 – 2026: Implementation of the Restoration Plan and Development of a Long-Term Management 
Plan 


2027+: City starts to maintain the natural area  


Cost 







The cost for Heartland Ecological to complete the restoration plan is $3,500. The Magnolia Springs 
Development is estimated to bring in $407,920 in impact fees for park development which can be used 
to fund the restoration plan.  







Magnolia Springs Park Facility Impact Fee Calculation - Updated 5/4/2023


Housing Type Units Park Facility Impact Fee/Unit Trail Fee/Unit Total
Single Family 62 3,950$                                             94$                    250,728$  
Multi Family 56 2,742$                                             65$                    157,192$  


407,920$  


Impact Fees Spent
Master Plan -$             
Wetland Restoration Plan
Total -$             







 
 506 Springdale Street, Mount Horeb, WI 53572 


Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. 


 


May 24, 2023 
 
Dan Glynn, CPRP 
Director of Parks & Recreation 
City of Stoughton 
608-873-6746 
DGlynn@cityofstoughton.com 
 


 
RE: Proposal for Professional Consulting Services – Magnolia Springs 


Development, City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin 


Dear Dan: 


Heartland Ecological Group, Inc. (Heartland) is pleased to present this proposal for 
professional consulting services within future parkland of the Magnolia Springs 
Development (the “Project”). The Project is located southwest of the intersection of 
Isham Street and S 4th Street in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin. This 
proposal includes the scope of services, assumptions, cost estimate, project schedule, 
extra services, and terms and conditions. Heartland will initiate this project upon receipt 
of an executed Agreement. 


PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 


The Magnolia Springs Development contains approximately 5.51 acres of parkland in the 
northeast corner of the property. The parkland contains existing woodland, wetlands, and a 
pond. Following development completion, the park area will also include a playground, two 
stormwater ponds, and a recreational trail system with an associated 0.81-acre right-of-
way corridor. A total of 3.69 acres of the parkland will be dedicated to the City of 
Stoughton and is shaded green on the attached plat sheet.  


The City of Stoughton has requested that Heartland prepare a restoration plan for the 
3.69-acre park area and the associated 0.81-acre trail corridor that provides 
recommendations to improve native plant communities, wildlife habitat, aesthetics, and 
park user experience. The restoration plan will not assess nor provide recommendations 
associated with the stormwater ponds, existing pond, or the playground.  


SCOPE OF SERVICES 


Heartland will perform the following: 


o Conduct a site visit of the Property to assess existing plant communities and take 
representative photographs.  


o Prepare a Restoration Plan that contains a description of existing conditions, 
photographs, recommendations for enhancing existing plant communities in line 
with the City’s goals for the park, recommendations for restoring newly graded 
park and corridor areas, implementation and 3-year establishment plan, and 
figures depicting existing and proposed conditions. 


o Provide a cost estimate for implementation of the Restoration Plan and three years 
of short-term management.   







Magnolia Springs 
City of Stoughton 
May 24, 2023 


Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 2 of 4 
 


ASSUMPTIONS 


o Heartland’s understanding of the restoration plan assessment limits corresponds to 
areas shaded in green on the attached plat sheet.  


o The Client is responsible for securing safe access onto the property and will inform 
Heartland of any required notifications prior to entering the property. 


o Attendance and coordination of client, project team, and/or regulatory agency 
meetings are not included unless specified in the Scope of Services. 


COST & SCHEDULE 


o $3,500 fixed fee including reimbursable expenses (materials, equipment, mileage). 


o If Heartland encounters unanticipated conditions or circumstances that result in 
exceeding the cost estimate or is requested to provide services that are not in the 
Scope of Services, Heartland will contact the Client for approval of the Extra 
Services and additional fees.  


o Upon authorization and acceptance of a signed agreement, Heartland will initiate 
and schedule the project services. Heartland will coordinate the fieldwork and 
report schedule with you and communicate closely throughout the project so that 
our services are completed and delivered on-time and as expected.  


EXTRA SERVICES 


The following are Extra Services that Heartland can provide for this Project under a 
change order or new contract, if requested: 


o Implementation of the Restoration Plan over a 3-year establishment period  


o Development of adaptive long-term management plan that can be implemented 
by City staff  


o Site visits with and/or training for City staff on plant communities and restoration 
implementation strategies for the Property 


PAYMENT 


All invoices are due for payment upon receipt. Additional payment conditions are identified 
in the attached Terms and Conditions. Payment should be mailed to the following address:  


Heartland Ecological Group, Inc. 
506 Springdale Street 


Mount Horeb, WI 53572 


 
  







Magnolia Springs 
City of Stoughton 
May 24, 2023 


Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 3 of 4 
 


TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


Heartland’s Professional Services Terms and Conditions are specified and included in the 
separate attachment.   


Heartland thanks you for the opportunity to offer this Proposal for Professional Services. 
We share your desire for a successful project. Please reach out with any questions you 
may have. 


 


Sincerely, 
 


 
 
Sarah Kraszewski  
Senior Ecologist  
Heartland Ecological Group, Inc.  
sarah@heartlandecological.com 
(608) 490-2450 Ext. 11 
(608) 598-7383 
 
 
Attachments: 
Signature Page, Terms and Conditions, Magnolia Springs Plat Sheet  







Magnolia Springs 
City of Stoughton 
May 24, 2023 


Solutions for people, projects, and ecological resources. Page 4 of 4 
 


 


The Proposal and Terms and Conditions are agreed upon and authorized by 
signature below by an authorized representative of the Client and Heartland 
Ecological Group, Inc. 


 
Heartland Signature:     


Date: May 24, 2023 Jeff Kraemer, Principal 
Heartland Ecological Group, Inc. 
506 Springdale Street 
Mount Horeb, WI 53572 


 
 
 
Client Signature:    


 
 
Date:     


 
 
Client Representative:   
 
  


 
Client Entity (if applicable):    


 
 
Client Billing Address:    


 
 


   
  
 


Client Email Address:     
 
 


Client Phone Number:   _________________________________________ 


 







 


 


TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


1. SERVICES: Heartland Ecological Group, Inc., (“Heartland”) shall provide the scope of Services (the 
“Services”) set forth in the attached proposal only after it is accepted and signed by the client (the 
“Client”). The accepted and signed proposal and these Terms and Conditions are collectively referred to 
herein as the “Agreement”. The Services shall include all Services provided by Heartland which are 


reasonably necessary and appropriate for the effective and prompt fulfillment of Heartland's obligations 
under the Agreement. It is understood that the Services are based on the information provided by Client. 
If the Client provides information that is incomplete or inaccurate, or if unexpected conditions are 
discovered, the Services may change, even as the work is in progress. In addition, Client may request 
additional Services which will constitute a change in the Services. When a change in the Services is 
necessary, a written amendment to the Agreement shall be executed by Client and Heartland prior to 


Heartland commencing the change in the work or Services. If Heartland believes an immediate change is 
necessary to protect human health or the environment, a written amendment incorporating the change 
shall be made as soon as is practicable, and Client's consent to such amendments shall not be 
unreasonably withheld.  


2. ACCEPTANCE: If Heartland is given a verbal or written notification to proceed without first receiving a 
signed copy of the Agreement, it will be mutually understood that Client and Heartland will nonetheless be 
contractually bound by the Agreement, even in the absence of written acceptance by either party. 
Heartland may withhold a written report until it receives the Agreement signed by Client. 


3. ESTIMATED COSTS AND PAYMENT: 


a. In providing opinions of probable cost and project schedule, it is recognized that neither the Client nor 
Heartland has control over the costs of labor, equipment or materials. The opinions of probable cost or 
project duration are based on Heartland’s reasonable professional judgment and experience and do 
not constitute a warranty, express or implied, that the actual cost or schedule will not vary from the 
estimated costs or schedule.  


b. Invoices will be submitted by Heartland to Client monthly or upon completion of the Services with 


payment of the invoices being due upon receipt. Any unpaid and delinquent invoices shall bear 
interest at one and one-half percent per month, commencing thirty days from the date of invoice. Any 
attorneys’ fees, court costs and other related expenses incurred by Heartland in the collection of 


delinquent invoice amounts shall be paid by Client. In the event any payment due Heartland under the 
terms is delinquent, Heartland may suspend all Services until all delinquent payments have been 
received. Fees charged do not include any state, federal or local applicable taxes, and taxes will be the 
responsibility of the Client. 


4. STANDARD OF CARE: The Services performed by Heartland under this Agreement will be conducted in a 
manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of Heartland's 
profession currently practicing in the area where the Services are being provided. 


5. RIGHT OF ENTRY:  


a. If the Services are to be performed on property controlled by Client, Client hereby grants Heartland 
and its subcontractors the right to enter from time to time for Heartland to fulfill the Services. Client 
understands that even though Heartland will take reasonable measures to return the property to the 
condition it was in before Heartland commenced its activities, the use of sampling and exploration 


equipment may cause some damage which cannot be fully corrected. Client also understands that the 
discovery of certain conditions may result in a reduction of the value of the property upon which the 


condition is found to exist. Accordingly, Client waives any claim against Heartland and its 
subcontractors and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Heartland and its subcontractors harmless 
from any claim based upon the diminished value of real property allegedly arising from the discovery 
of a condition, unless such claim is based upon the negligent performance of Services under the 
Services.  


b. If the Services are to be performed on property which is not controlled by Client, Client agrees to 
obtain permission from the party controlling the property to Heartland's entry and the performance of 
the Services.  


c. Heartland shall, and shall cause its subcontractors, to abide by all of Client's facility rules and 
regulations regarding the protection of health and safety of employees and third parties, but it shall be 







 


 


Client's obligation to make such rules and regulations known to the Heartland prior to Heartland 
commencing work at Client's facility, property or worksite.  


6. CLIENT DISCLOSURES: 


a. Client shall make available to Heartland all relevant information and/or data which in any way relate 
to or affect the Services.  Heartland shall have the right to rely on the accuracy and completeness of 


such Client-furnished information and data in its agreement to perform the Services.  Heartland shall 
not be responsible to the Client for the consequences of any error or omission arising from the Client 
furnished information or data. 


b. The Client shall be responsible for securing a safe project site.  If the presence of an unanticipated 
hazardous condition is discovered during the performance of the Services which could pose a safety 
risk to Heartland's employees, agents and subcontractors, Heartland may cease work and determine 


the necessary health and safety precautions to continue the Services. The cost of these necessary 
health and safety precautions shall be a change and shall be managed in accordance with Section 1.  


7. INSURANCE: Heartland represents that it is protected by Worker’s Compensation insurance and that 


Heartland has coverage under liability insurance policies that Heartland deems reasonable and adequate. 
Upon request, Heartland shall furnish certificates of insurance to the Client evidencing the risks insured 
against, and the limits of liability thereunder. In the event the Client requires specific inclusions of 
coverage in addition to that obtained by Heartland, or increased limits of liability in Heartland’s liability 
policies, the cost of such inclusions or increased limits shall be borne by the Client.  


8. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGE: Heartland shall not be liable to Client for indirect, special, 
incidental, consequential, punitive, or exemplary damages arising out of or in connection with the Services 
or any acts or omissions associated therewith, including any acts or omissions by subcontractors of 
Heartland, or relating to any Services furnished, whether such claim is based on breach of warranty, 
contract, tort or any other legal theory regardless of the causes of such loss or damages or whether any 
other remedy provided herein fails.  


9. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES WAIVER / CAP ON LIABILITY 


a. In no event will Heartland be liable for any incidental, consequential, punitive, exemplary or special 


damages or losses including without limitation loss profits, loss of business opportunities or other 
similar damages resulting from or arising out of this Agreement, by statute, in tort or contract, under 
any indemnity provision or otherwise (except with respect to indemnity obligations for third-party 
claims and losses.  


b. Heartland’s liability to Client under this Agreement (except with respect to indemnity obligations for 
third-party claims and losses) as a whole for any and all damages, including without limitation, claims 
for indemnification, shall be strictly limited to the lesser of the amount of fees actually paid by Client 


under this Agreement or $250,000. 


10. INDEMNIFICATION: Subject to the limitations set forth below, Heartland shall indemnify, defend, and 
hold harmless Client and its subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective shareholders, directors, 
officers, employees, agents, and subcontractors (“Client’s Indemnitees”) from and against any and all 
claims, demands, losses, damages, fines, costs, and expenses of every nature, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees (“Claims”), incurred or suffered by any Heartland Indemnitee as a result of claims asserted 
by third parties unaffiliated with Client which arise from the negligent acts or willful misconduct of 


Heartland in performing Services under this Agreement, except to the extent such claims result from the 


negligent acts or omissions of Client, the inaccuracy or incompleteness of information provided by Client 
or any material breach by Client of its obligations under this Agreement. Heartland’s indemnification 
obligations hereunder are limited to the limits of Heartland’s insurance coverage applicable to the Claims. 


11. Subject to the limitations set forth below, Client shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Heartland and 
its subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, and 
subcontractors (“Heartland Indemnitees”) from and against any and all Claims incurred or suffered by any 
Heartland Indemnitee as a result of claims asserted by third parties unaffiliated with Client which arise 


from the negligent acts or willful misconduct of Client, except to the extent such claims result from the 
negligent acts or omissions of Heartland.  


12. CONSTRUCTION LIEN NOTICE: As required by the Wisconsin Construction Lien Law, Heartland hereby 
notifies Client that persons or companies furnishing labor or materials for the construction, or Services 







 


 


provided, on Client’s land may have lien rights on Client’s land and building if not paid. Those entitled to 
lien rights, in addition to the undersigned Heartland, are those who contract directly with Client or those 
who give Client notice within 60 days after they first furnish labor or materials for construction or 
performance of Services. Accordingly, Client probably will receive notices from those who furnish labor or 


materials for the construction or performance of Services, and should give a copy of each notice received 
to the mortgage lender, if any. Heartland agrees to cooperate with Client and Client’s lender, if any, to see 
that all potential lien claimants are duly paid. 


13. FORCE MAJEURE: Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Agreement to the extent that any 
delay or failure in the performance of its obligations (other than the payment of money) results, without 
its fault or negligence, from any cause beyond its reasonable control, including, without limitation, acts of 
God, acts of civil or military authority, embargoes, epidemics, war, riots, insurrections, fires, explosions, 


earthquakes, floods, adverse weather conditions, acts of other contractors, strikes, or lock-outs. 


14. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACT: Heartland may employ any other party it deems necessary or 
proper for any part of the Services required to be performed by Heartland under the terms of this 
Agreement. Client shall not assign this Agreement without prior written consent of Heartland, which 


consent will not be unreasonably withheld. 


15. TERMINATION: Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon written notice to the other 
sent to the address set forth on the Agreement. In the event of termination of the Agreement, Heartland 
will be compensated for Services performed under this Agreement to the termination date together with 
all costs arising out of such termination. 


16. TIME LIMIT FOR CLAIMS: Any claim brought by Client against Heartland will be brought not later than 
one year after the date of substantial completion of Heartland’s Services for which the claim is made or 
the expiration of the appropriate statute of limitation, whichever is earlier. 


17. USE OF DOCUMENTS: All reports and documents (the “Documents”) generated by Heartland pursuant to 
this Agreement are not intended or suitable for reuse by Client or any other party for any purpose other 
than set forth in this Agreement. Reuse of any reports or documents for any other purpose without written 
consent of Heartland shall be at Client’s and the user’s sole risk without any liability on Heartland’s part. 
The Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless Heartland 


against all damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, arising 
from any unauthorized use or reuse of the Documents. The provisions of this Paragraph shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 


18. ATTORNEY FEES: In the event of a dispute hereunder, the prevailing party is entitled to recover from the 
other party all costs incurred by the prevailing party in enforcing this Agreement and prosecuting the 
dispute, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 


19. GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted pursuant to the laws of the 
State of Wisconsin. 


20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: The terms and conditions set forth herein along with the Agreement (and any 
referenced attachments) constitute the entire understanding of the parties relating to the provision of 
Services by Heartland and supersede all prior or contemporaneous communications, representations or 
agreements, whether oral or written, between the parties. No alterations to or modifications of the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement shall be effective unless such alteration or such modification is reduced 
to writing and properly executed by the parties hereto. 


21. SEVERABILITY: The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement or any 
portion thereof shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be construed in all 
respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision or any portion thereof were omitted. 







8''W


8''W


8''W


8''W


8''W


<<
<<


8''W
8''W


8''W
<<


8''W
8''W


<<<< 8''W8''W8''W8''W<<<< 8''W8''W8''W


<< <<
8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W


<<
8'


'W
8'


'W


<< <<<<8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W


<<
8''W


8''W


8''W


<<8''W


<<<<8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W


8''W
<<


8''W


<<


8''W


<<<<


8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W
<< <<


8''
W


8''
W


<< <<


<<


8'
'W


8'
'W


8'
'W


8'
'W


<<


>


<<
8''W


8''W


8''W


8''W 8''W


8''W
8''W


8''W
8''W


8''W


8''W


8''W


8''W 8''W


8''W


>


>>


>>


> >


8''W


>
>


>


>


>


>>


> >


>


>


W


W


E


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


www.msa-ps.com


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL HOSTRAWSER CONCEPT GRADING PLAN


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PROJECT NO.


21669000
SHEET


C5


   DRAWN BY:            JN


   DESIGNED BY:       JN


   CHECKED BY:        ST
CONCEPT PARK AREA.


  PLOT DATE: 10/21/2022 3:14 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Site Plan Concept 10202022.dwg


  PROJECT DATE: 2022


NO. REVISION BY
. .


. .


. .


DATE


.


.


.


.


.


.


0 80 160
ISHAM ST.


4TH ST.


CLOVER LANE


ORCHID AVENUE


WILLOW WAY


DAHLIA DRIVE


AAKER RD.


APPROX. 5.51
ACRE PARK AREA


9116 SF PLAYGROUND
APPROX 0.81 ACRE CORRDIOR


WITH VARYING ROW


19' 0 ROAD WIDTH
19' 0 ROAD WIDTH


MH-E


MH-3
MH-2MH-1


MH-4


MH-5


MH-6 MH-7


MH-10


MH-11


MH-12 MH-13


MH-16


MH-18


MH-19


MH-20


MH-21


MH-22


MH-23MH-14


MH-15
MH-24


MH-8


MH-9


MH-17


APPROX. 3.69
ACRE DEDICATED
PARK AREA


0.046 ACRE SIDEWALK CORRIDOR


S. PAG
E ST


S. PAG
E ST


WILLOW WAY


DAHLIA DRIVE


ORCHID AVENUE



AutoCAD SHX Text

15ft utility easement for storm pipe



AutoCAD SHX Text

70ft ALL utility easement for storm pipe



AutoCAD SHX Text

66' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

151' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

Transitional ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

60' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

60' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

60' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

60' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

60' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

Transitional ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

66' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

60' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

15ft utility easement for storm pipe



AutoCAD SHX Text

66' ROW



AutoCAD SHX Text

66' ROW





		09 R-113-2023 Magnolia Springs Restoration Plan Resolution.pdf

		09a Magnolia Springs Restoration Plan Memo.pdf

		09b Magnolia Springs Impact Fees.pdf

		09c Heartland_Proposal_Magnolia Springs Mgmt Plan_20230524.pdf










T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\07-11-2023\10 R-114-2023 Naming of Teigen Farm Park in Magnolia Springs development.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 


Naming of Teigen Farm Park in Magnolia Springs development 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Community Affairs/Council Policy Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 
06/06/2023  


Fiscal Impact: 
 
None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-114-2023 


 
Date Introduced: June 27, 2023 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 
 


WHEREAS, the Community Affairs/Council Policy Committee recommended approval for the 
Magnolia Springs park name to Teigen Park, contingent on family approval; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Teigen family has indicated they are honored to use the family name for the park 


and indicated their preference for the new park name is Teigen Farm Park;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOVED, that the park in the Magnolia Springs development 


shall hereby be named Teigen Farm Park. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
 
            
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       







 







PARK NAMING POLICY 


 


 


I. PURPOSE 


 


The purpose of the policy is to establish standard procedures and guidelines for the naming of 


public parklands and facilities owned and/or operated by the City of Stoughton.  


 


II. AUTHORIZATION 


 


The naming of sites shall be the function of the Community Affairs Committee, or study group 


named by the Committee. Through this group, diversity, balance and creativity will be sought 


during adoption of names. These names will be recommended to the Stoughton City Council for 


final approval. 


 


III. OBJECTIVES 


 


A. Provide name identification for individual parks, park area or park facility. 


B. Provide criteria for citizen input into the process of naming parks, park areas or 


facilities. 


C. Insure that the naming of parks, park areas, or park facilities is controlled by the 


Stoughton City Council through recommendations from the Community Affairs 


Committee with advice from staff. 


 


IV. QUALIFYING NAMES 


 


Names submitted for consideration should provide some form of individual identity in relation to 


the following: 


 


A. The geographic location of the facility. This includes descriptive names. 


B. An outstanding feature of the facility. 


C. An adjoining subdivision, street, school or natural feature. 


D. A commonly recognized historical event, group, organization or individual (living 


or deceased). 


E. An individual or organization that contributed significantly to the acquisition or 


development of the facility to be named. This can include either a deed or 


substantial monetary contribution, or contribution toward acquisition and/or 


development of the park or facility (typically not less than 50 percent of the value 


of the property or improvements). 


F. Outstanding accomplishments by an individual for the good of the community. 


Quality of the contribution should be considered along with the length of service 


by the individual—this to be fully substantiated by person making 


recommendation. 


G. An individual who provided an exceptional service in the interest of the park 


system as a whole. Typically, while serving in a public office, public officials 


should not be considered as a candidate for naming. 







 


 


V. OTHER NAMING ALTERNATIVES 
 


A. Parks and facilities that are donated to the City can be named by deed restriction 


by the donor. The naming and acceptance of land is subject to approval by the 


City Council. Naming rights are not guaranteed if the donation of parkland is a 


dedication as required by the subdivision ordinance (parkland dedication). 


B. Facilities within a park can be named separately from the park and/or facility in 


which they are located, subject to the general guidelines outlined in this policy. 


 


VI. NAMING PROCESS – EXISTING UN-NAMED FACILITIES 


 


A. Individuals, groups and/or organizations interested in proposing a name for an 


existing un-named park area or facility must do so in writing, presented to the 


Parks and Recreation Director, for consideration by the Community Affairs 


Committee. 


B. The Community Affairs Committee will conduct a public meeting on the request 


and allow 30 days following the public meeting for public comment. 


C. The Committee will recommend to the City Council action on the request 


following appropriate publication (press release, cable, Tower Times). 


 


VII. NAMING PROCESS – NEW FACILITIES 


 


A. A temporary name will be designated by City staff for identification during 


acquisition and/or development of the park area or facility. 


B. Individuals, group and/or organization may suggest names for the park or facility 


in writing, presented to the Parks and Recreation Director, for consideration by 


the Community Affairs Committee. 


C. The Community Affairs Committee will appoint a study group to make a name 


recommendation. This group may choose from a variety of means to select a 


name (citizen contests, recommendations from previous owners, historical review 


of the site, etc.) but in all cases, citizen involvement is encouraged. 


D. The Community Affairs Committee will conduct a public meeting on the 


suggested name and allow 30 days following the public meeting for public 


comment. 


E. The Committee will recommend to the City Council action on the request 


following the 30 days for public comment. 


 


VIII. PARK RENAMING 


 


Critical examination will be conducted to ensure that renaming the park will not diminish the 


original justification for the name or the prior contributors. Renaming will follow the same 


procedures as naming the park.  


 







A. Only parks and facilities named for geographic location, outstanding feature or 


subdivision should be considered for renaming. Parks that have been named by 


deed restriction shall not be considered for renaming. 


B. Parks and facilities named after individuals shall not be changed unless it is found 


that because of the individual's character the continued use of their name would 


not be in the best interest of the community. 


 


IX. PLAQUES, MARKERS AND MEMORIALS 


 


The Community Affairs Committee, or its designee, must approve any plaques, markers or 


memorials. All parties involved must agree upon a written maintenance agreement for each 


plaque/marker/memorial before they are installed.  


 


All memorials must be designed to blend with and compliment the existing Parks and Recreation 


Department signs, plaques, markers, and memorials. 


 


APPROVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL: February 24, 2004 
S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\PARK NAMING.docx 


S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\PARK NAMING.pdf 


LASERFICHE:\Stoughton\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\Park Naming 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 





		10 R-114-2023 Naming of Teigen Farm Park in Magnolia Springs development.pdf

		10a Magnolia Springs map.pdf

		10b Park Naming Policy.pdf











 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Acceptance of Tax Incremental Districts financial statements 12-31-2022 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 06/27/2023 
                                                       


 
Fiscal Impact:   None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-115-2023 Date 07/11/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, Wisconsin municipalities are required to file an annual Tax Incremental 
District (TID) report each year with the Wisconsin Department of Revenue; and, 


 WHEREAS, Baker Tilly US, LLP prepares annually a Compilation Financial Statement 
document for all active TIDs for use in preparing the TID report for the Wisconsin Department of 
Revenue; and, 


 WHEREAS, Baker Tilly US, LLP has prepared the Compilation Financial Statements for 
Tax Incremental Districts Nos. 4 through No. 9 dated December 31, 2022; 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of 
Stoughton hereby accepts that Compilation Financial Statements for Tax Incremental Districts 
Nos. 4 through No. 9 dated December 31, 2022 as prepared by Baker Tilly US, LLP. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental Districts No. 4, No. 5, 


No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 


Financial Statements 


December 31, 2022 







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 
Table of Contents 
December 31, 2022 
 


   Page   


Accountants' Compilation Report 1


Financial Statements 


Tax Incremental District No. 4 - Balance Sheet 2 


Tax Incremental District No. 4 - Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues and 
Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 3 


Tax Incremental District No. 4 - Historical Summary of Sources, Uses and Status of Funds 4 


Tax Incremental District No. 5 - Balance Sheet 5 


Tax Incremental District No. 5 - Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues and 
Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 6 


Tax Incremental District No. 5 - Historical Summary of Sources Uses and Status of Funds 7 


Tax Incremental District No. 6 - Balance Sheet 8 


Tax Incremental District No. 6 - Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues and 
Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 9 


Tax Incremental District No. 6 - Historical Summary of Sources Uses and Status of Funds 10 


Tax Incremental District No. 7 - Balance Sheet 11 


Tax Incremental District No. 7 - Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues and 
Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 12 


Tax Incremental District No. 7 - Historical Summary of Sources Uses and Status of Funds 13 


Tax Incremental District No. 8 - Balance Sheet 14 


Tax Incremental District No. 8 - Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues and 
Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 15 


Tax Incremental District No. 8 - Historical Summary of Sources Uses and Status of Funds 16 


Tax Incremental District No. 9 - Balance Sheet 17 


Tax Incremental District No. 9 - Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues and 
Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 18 


Tax Incremental District No. 9 - Historical Summary of Sources Uses and Status of Funds 19 


Notes to Financial Statements 20 







1 


Accountants' Compilation Report 


To the City Council of 
City of Stoughton 


Management is responsible for the accompanying Balance Sheet, Historical Summary of Project Costs, 
Project Revenues and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments and Historical Summary of 
Sources, Uses and Status of Funds of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin's Tax Incremental Districts No. 4, 
No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 (Districts) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 and from the 
date of creation through December 31, 2022, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. We have performed a compilation engagement in accordance with Statements 
on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services 
Committee of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We did not audit or review the financial 
statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the 
information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide 
any form of assurance on these financial statements. 


As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the transactions of the Districts and do not 
purport to and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Stoughton as of December 31, 2022, 
the changes in its financial position or, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 


Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the financial statements. 
Such missing information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economical or historical context. 


Madison, Wisconsin 
June 22, 2023 


Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which 
are separate and independent legal entities. © 2020-2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 4
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2022


Capital
Projects


Fund


Assets


Taxes receivable 175,711$         


Total assets 175,711$         


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance


Liabilities
Accounts payable 3,031$             
Advance from city general fund 13,005             


Total liabilities 16,036             


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 175,711           


Total deferred inflows of resources 175,711           


Fund Balance
Unassigned (deficit) (16,036)            


Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balance 175,711$         


See notes to financial statements 
2







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 4
Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues


and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Project Costs
Capital expenditures (1,175)$            2,981,246$      
Administration (in-house) -                       70,139             
Department of Revenue fees 150                  750                  
Revolving loan fund 15,000             280,000           
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 9,551               340,578           
Debt issuance costs -                       26,075             
Contribution to other districts 168,352           580,173           
Interest on long-term debt -                       802,998           


Total project costs 191,878           5,081,959        


Project Revenues
Tax increments 163,178           3,159,866        
Exempt computer aid 1,775               62,895             
Personal property aid 5,207               20,828             
Intergovernmental -                       89,415             
Contribution from other districts -                       1,405,024        
Investment income 676                  170,421           
Sale of property -                       104,762           
Miscellaneous revenue -                       8,810               
Developer guarantees -                       43,902             


Total project revenues 170,836           5,065,923        


Net cost (recovered) to be recovered through
TIF increments, December 31, 2022 21,042$           16,036$           


See notes to financial statements
3







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 4
Historical Summary of Sources, Uses and Status of Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Sources of Funds
Tax increments 163,178$         3,159,866$      
Exempt computer aid 1,775               62,895             
Personal property aid 5,207               20,828             
Intergovernmental -                       89,415             
Contribution from other districts -                       1,405,024        
Investment income 676                  170,421           
Sale of property -                       104,762           
Miscellaneous revenue -                       8,810               
Developer guarantees -                       43,902             
Long-term debt issued -                       3,160,750        


Total sources of funds 170,836           8,226,673        


Uses of Funds
Capital expenditures (1,175)              2,981,246        
Administration (in-house) -                       70,139             
Department of Revenue fees 150                  750                  
Revolving loan fund 15,000             280,000           
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 9,551               340,578           
Debt issuance costs -                       26,075             
Contribution to other districts 168,352           580,173           
Interest on long-term debt -                       802,998           
Principal on long-term debt -                       3,160,750        


Total uses of funds 191,878           8,242,709        


Excess (deficiency) of sources of funds over uses of funds (21,042)            (16,036)            


Fund Balance, Beginning 5,006               -                       


Fund Balance (Deficit), Ending (16,036)$          (16,036)$          


See notes to financial statements 
4







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 5
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2022


Capital
Projects


Fund


Assets


Taxes receivable 59,705$           
Accounts receivable 158                  


Total assets 59,863$           


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance


Liabilities
   Accounts payable 139$                


Advance from city general fund 586,141           


Total liabilities 586,280           


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 59,705             


Total deferred inflows of resources 59,705             


Fund Balance
Unassigned (deficit) (586,122)          


Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balance 59,863$           


See notes to financial statements 
5







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 5
Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues


and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Project Costs
Capital expenditures -$                     2,717,912$      
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 1,652               52,734             
Department of Revenue fees 150                  1,750               
Interest on advances -                       96,965             
Debt issuance costs -                       18,157             
Interest on long-term debt 42,389             233,946           


Total project costs 44,191             3,121,464        


Project Revenues
Tax increments 66,352             196,798           
Transfer from other funds -                       100,000           
Contribution from other districts 153,850           178,850           
Exempt computer aid 39,592             278,353           
Intergovernmental -                       350,000           
Developer guarantees -                       130,168           
Investment income -                       5,724               
Land sales -                       116,616           
Miscellaneous revenues -                       1,000               


Total project revenues 259,794           1,357,509        


Net cost (recovered) to be recovered through
TIF increments, December 31, 2022 (215,603)$        1,763,955$      


Reconciliation of Recoverable Costs
General obligation debt 1,177,833$      
Add fund balance deficit 586,122           


 
Net costs to be recovered through


TIF increments, December 31, 2022 1,763,955$      


See notes to financial statements 
6







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 5
Historical Summary of Sources, Uses and Status of Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Sources of Funds
Tax increments 66,352$           196,798$         
Transfers from other funds -                       100,000           
Contribution from other districts 153,850           178,850           
Exempt computer aid 39,592             278,353           
Intergovernmental -                       350,000           
Developer guarantees -                       130,168           
Investment income -                       5,724               
Land sales -                       116,616           
Miscellaneous revenues -                       1,000               
Long-term debt issued -                       1,498,750        


Total sources of funds 259,794           2,856,259        


Uses of Funds
Capital expenditures -                       2,717,912        
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 1,652               52,734             
Department of Revenue fees 150                  1,750               
Interest on advance -                       96,965             
Debt issuance costs -                       18,157             
Interest on long-term debt 42,389             233,946           
Principal on long-term debt 111,461           320,917           


Total uses of funds 155,652           3,442,381        


Excess (deficiency) of sources of funds over uses of funds 104,142           (586,122)          


Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning (690,264)          -                       


Fund Balance (Deficit), Ending (586,122)$        (586,122)$        


See notes to financial statements 
7







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 6
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2022


Capital
Projects


Fund


Assets


Cash and investments 359,437$         
Taxes receivable 75,532             
Accounts receivable 429                  


Total assets 435,398$         


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance


Liabilities
Accounts payable and deposits 48,770$           
Advances from city general fund 125,000           


Total liabilities 173,770           


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 75,532             


Total deferred inflows of resources 75,532             


Fund Balance
Restricted 186,096           


Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balance 435,398$         


See notes to financial statements 
8







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 6
Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues


and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Project Costs
Capital expenditures -$                     2,546,895$      
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 17,026             226,144           
Department of Revenue fees 150                  750                  
Debt issuance cost -                       36,163             
Interest on long-term debt 78,234             206,942           


Total project costs 95,410             3,016,894        


Project Revenues
Tax increments 65,877             139,551           
Tax levy -                       125,000           
Investment income 4,304               43,418             
Developer guarantee 35,000             52,159             
Land sales -                       173,230           
Premium on long-term debt -                       14,080             
Miscellaneous revenues 6,277               63,222             


Total project revenues 111,458           610,660           


Net cost (recovered) to be recovered through
TIF increments, December 31, 2022 (16,048)$          2,406,234$      


Reconciliation of Recoverable Costs
General obligation debt 2,592,330$      
Less fund balance (186,096)          


 
Net costs to be recovered through


tax increments, December 31, 2022 2,406,234$      


See notes to financial statements 
9







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 6
Historical Summary of Sources, Uses and Status of Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Sources of Funds
Tax increments 65,877$           139,551$         
Tax levy -                       125,000           
Investment income 4,304               43,418             
Developer guarantee 35,000             52,159             
Miscellaneous revenues 6,277               63,222             
Land sales -                       173,230           
Premium on long-term debt -                       14,080             
Long-term debt issued -                       3,123,709        


Total sources of funds 111,458           3,734,369        


Uses of Funds
Capital expenditures -                       2,546,895        
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 17,026             226,144           
Department of Revenue fees 150                  750                  
Debt issuance cost -                       36,163             
Interest on long-term debt 78,234             206,942           
Principal on long-term debt 341,379           531,379           


Total uses of funds 436,789           3,548,273        


Excess (deficiency) of sources of funds over uses of funds (325,331)          186,096           


Fund Balance, Beginning 511,427           -                       


Fund Balance, Ending 186,096$         186,096$         


See notes to financial statements 
10







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 7
Balance Sheet
and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments


Capital
Projects


Fund


Assets


Cash and investments 1,265,893$      
Taxes receivable 900,076           
Accounts receivable 64,468             


Total assets 2,230,437$      


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance


Liabilities


Accounts payable and deposits 408,977$         


Total liabilities 408,977           


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 926,541           


Total deferred inflows of resources 926,541           


Fund Balance
Restricted 894,919           


Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balance 2,230,437$      


See notes to financial statements 
11







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 7
Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues


and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Project Costs
Capital expenditures -$                     3,233,521$      
Developer payments 804,118           1,354,118        
Administration (in-house) -                       33,311             
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 52,024             1,269,688        
Department of Revenue fees 150                  450                  
Assessment settlement 62,633             62,633             
Debt issuance costs 18,865             121,543           
Interest on long-term debt 117,473           700,173           


Total project costs 1,055,263        6,775,437        


Project Revenues
Tax increments 832,281           3,325,811        
Premium on long-term debt 13,208             174,028           
Investment income 16,732             47,758             
Developer guarantees 29,651             127,759           


Total project revenues 891,872           3,675,356        


Net cost (recovered) to be recovered through
TIF increments, December 31, 2022 163,391$         3,100,081$      


Reconciliation of Recoverable Costs
Long-term debt  3,995,000$      
Less fund balance (894,919)          


 
Net costs to be recovered through


tax increments, December 31, 2022 3,100,081$      


See notes to financial statements 
12







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 7
Historical Summary of Sources, Uses and Status of Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Sources of Funds
Tax increments 832,281$         3,325,811$      
Investment income 16,732             47,758             
Premium on long-term debt 13,208             174,028           
Long-term debt issued 700,000           9,565,000        
Developer guarantees 29,651             127,759           


Total sources of funds 1,591,872        13,240,356      


Uses of Funds
Capital expenditures -                       3,233,521        
Developer payments 804,118           1,354,118        
Administration (in-house) -                       33,311             
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 52,024             1,269,688        
Department of Revenue fees 150                  450                  
Assessment settlement 62,633             62,633             
Debt issuance cost 18,865             121,543           
Interest on long-term debt 117,473           700,173           
Principal on long-term debt 220,000           5,570,000        


Total uses of funds 1,275,263        12,345,437      


Excess of sources of funds over uses of funds 316,609           894,919           


Fund Balance, Beginning 578,310           -                       


Fund Balance, Ending 894,919$         894,919$         


See notes to financial statements 
13







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 8
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2022


Capital
Projects


Fund


Assets


Taxes receivable 22,014$           


Due from the state 679,909           


Total assets 701,923$         


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance 


Liabilities


Accounts payable 39,755$           


Advance from city general fund 258,626           


Total liabilities 298,381           


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 22,014             
Unavailable revenues 679,909           


Total deferred inflows of resources 701,923           


Fund Balance
Unassigned (deficit) (298,381)          


Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balance 701,923$         


See notes to financial statements 
14







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 8
Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues


and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Project Costs
Capital expenditures 1,034,279$      1,802,114$      
Department of Revenue fees 150                  1,600               
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 159,794           348,861           
Debt issuance costs 18,714             22,497             
Interest on long-term debt 26,288             91,245             


Total project costs 1,239,225        2,266,317        


Project Revenues
Tax increments 6,890               12,486             
Tax levy -                       24,741             
Intergovernmental 84,490             179,990           
Contribution from other districts 14,502             401,323           
Premium on long-term debt 13,020             14,645             
Investment income -                       4,963               


Total project revenues 118,902           638,148           


Net cost (recovered) to be recovered through
TIF increments, December 31, 2022 1,120,323$      1,628,169$      


Reconciliation of Recoverable Costs
Long-term debt  1,329,788$      
Add fund balance deficit 298,381           


 
Net costs to be recovered through


tax increments, December 31, 2022 1,628,169$      


See notes to financial statements 
15







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 8
Historical Summary of Sources, Uses and Status of Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Sources of Funds
Tax increments 6,890$             12,486$           
Tax levy -                       24,741             
Investment income -                       4,963               
Intergovernmental 84,490             179,990           
Contribution from other districts 14,502             401,323           
Premium on long-term debt 13,020             14,645             
Long-term debt issued 690,000           1,418,409        


Total sources of funds 808,902           2,056,557        


Uses of Funds
Capital expenditures 1,034,279        1,802,114        
Department of Revenue fees 150                  1,600               
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 159,794           348,861           
Debt issuance cost 18,714             22,497             
Interest and fiscal charges on long-term debt 26,288             91,245             
Principal on long-term debt 88,621             88,621             


Total uses of funds 1,327,846        2,354,938        


Excess (deficiency) of sources of funds over uses of funds (518,944)          (298,381)          


Fund Balance, Beginning 220,563           -                       


Fund Balance (Deficit), Ending (298,381)$        (298,381)$        


See notes to financial statements 
16







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 9
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2022


Capital
Projects


Fund


Assets


Accounts receivable 10,626$           


Total assets 10,626$           


Liabilities and Fund Balance 


Liabilities


Accounts payable and deposits 26,084$           


Advance from city general fund 8,056               


Total liabilities 34,140             


Fund Balance
Unassigned (deficit) (23,514)            


Total liabilities and fund balance 10,626$           


See notes to financial statements 
17







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 9
Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues


and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Project Costs
Administration (in-house) 19,475$           19,475$           
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 38,528             38,528             


Total project costs 58,003             58,003             


Project Revenues
   Miscellaneous revenue 33,985             33,985             
   Investment income 504                  504                  


Total project revenues 34,489             34,489             


Net cost (recovered) to be recovered through
TIF increments, December 31, 2022 23,514$           23,514$           


See notes to financial statements 
18







City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District No. 9
Historical Summary of Sources, Uses and Status of Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2022 and From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2022


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


Sources of Funds
Investment income 504$                504$                
Miscellaneous revenue 33,985             33,985             


Total sources of funds 34,489             34,489             


Uses of Funds
Administration (in-house) 19,475             19,475             
Professional services, planning, engineering, other 38,528             38,528             


Total uses of funds 58,003             58,003             


Excess (deficiency) of sources of funds over uses of funds (23,514)            (23,514)            


Fund Balance, Beginning -                       -                       


Fund Balance (Deficit), Ending (23,514)$          (23,514)$          


See notes to financial statements 
19







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 
 


 20 


1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 


The accounting policies of the City of Stoughton's Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, 
No. 8 and No. 9 (the Districts) conform to accounting principles as applicable to governmental units and 
as defined by Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105. 


The City of Stoughton (the City) has implemented accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America to the extent they apply in determining the scope of the activity of the Districts. The 
accompanying financial statements reflect all the significant operations of the Districts. The 
accompanying financial statements do not include the full presentation of the City. 


Description of Fund Structure and Long-Term Debt 


This report contains the financial information of the Districts. The summary statements were prepared 
from data recorded in the following funds and the City's long-term debt: 


Debt Service Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 


Detailed descriptions of the purpose of these funds and long-term debt can be found in the City's 
basic financial statements. 


The data was consolidated for purposes of this report. Therefore, the amounts shown in the 
accompanying statements will not directly correlate with amounts shown in the basic financial 
statements. 


The Districts was created under the provisions of Wisconsin Statute Section 66.1105. The purpose of 
that section is to allow a municipality to recover development and improvement costs in a designated 
area from the property taxes generated on the increased value of the property after the creation date 
of the Districts. The tax on the increased value is called a tax increment. 


The statutes allow the Districts to collect tax increments until the net project cost has been fully 
recovered, or until 27 years for TID Nos. 4, 5 and 8 and 20 years for TID Nos. 6, 7 and 9, after the 
creation date, whichever occurs first. Project costs uncollected at the dissolution date are absorbed 
by the City. Project costs may be incurred up to five years before the unextended termination date of 
the Districts. 


Original Project Plan 


  Creation Date  
Last Date to Incur 


Project Costs  
Last Year to Collect 


Increment 


 
TID No. 4  01/01/1999  03/23/2021  2026  
TID No. 5  01/01/2010  03/12/2032  2037  
TID No. 6  01/01/2015  09/29/2030  2036  
TID No. 7  01/01/2015  11/11/2029  2035  
TID No. 8  01/01/2018  07/24/2040  2046  
TID No. 9  01/01/2022  04/12/2038  2043  


 
  







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 
 


 21 


Plan Amendment 


  Adoption Date  
 


TID No. 4 Amendment No. 1  09/26/2006   
TID No. 4 Amendment No. 2  01/12/2010   
TID No. 4 Amendment No. 3  01/12/2021   
TID No. 5 Amendment No. 1  07/24/2018   
TID No. 7 Amendment No. 1  05/20/2020   
     


Basis of Accounting 


The modified accrual basis of accounting was followed in the preparation of these statements. Under 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., 
both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Project costs, other than interest on 
long-term debt, are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. 


District increments are recorded as revenues in the year due. Intergovernmental aids and grants are 
recognized as revenues in the period the related expenditures are incurred, if applicable, or when the 
District is entitled to the aids.  


Special assessments are recorded as revenues when collected. Annual installments due in future 
years are accounted for as receivables and unavailable revenues. There are no special assessments 
receivables as of the date of this report. 


Other general revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable and available 
under the criteria described above.  


Use of Estimates 


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 


Measurement Focus 


The measurement focus of all governmental funds is the funds flow concept. Under the funds flow 
concept, sources and uses of financial resources, including capital outlays, debt proceeds and debt 
retirements are reflected in operations. Resources not available to finance expenditures and 
commitments of the current period are recognized as unavailable or unearned revenue or as 
nonspendable fund equity. Liabilities for claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension 
contributions which will not be currently liquidated using expendable available financial resources are 
shown in the long-term debt footnote disclosure. The related expenditures are recognized when the 
liabilities are liquidated. 


Project Plan Budget 


The estimated revenues and expenditures of the District are adopted in the project plan. Those 
estimates are for the entire life of the District, and may not be comparable to interim results presented 
in this report.  


  







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 
 


 22 


Long-Term Debt 


Short-term liabilities are recorded as fund liabilities. All other long-term liabilities are shown in the 
long-term debt footnote disclosure.  


Proceeds of long-term debt issues not recorded as fund liabilities are reflected as "Sources of Funds" 
in the operating statement of the recipient fund. Retirement of these issues is reported as an 
expenditure in the year in which the debt matures or is repaid, whichever is earlier. 


Claims and Judgments 


Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board pronouncements are met. The liability and expenditure for claims and judgments is 
only reported in governmental funds if it has matured. Claims and judgments are disclosed in the 
long-term debt footnote when the related liabilities are incurred.  


 
2. Cash and Temporary Investments 


The Districts invest funds in accordance with the provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes 66.0603(1m) and 
67.11(2). 


Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted market prices. No 
investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value 
are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income. 


The Districts, as funds of the City, maintain separate and common cash and investment accounts at the 
same financial institutions utilized by the City. Federal depository insurance and the State of Wisconsin 
Guarantee fund insurance apply to the City as an individual municipality, and, accordingly, the amount of 
insured funds is not determinable for the Districts. 


 
3. Long-Term Debt 


General Obligation Debt 


All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. 
Notes and bonds borrowed to finance the Districts' expenditures will be retired by tax increments 
accumulated by the District funds. If those revenues are not sufficient, payments will be made by 
future tax levies or utility revenues, as applicable. 


  







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 
 


 23 


  


Original 
Amount 


Borrowed  Repaid  
Balance 
12-31-22 


 
TIF District No. 4          


02/23/99 State Trust Fund Loan - 5.25%  $ 162,000  $ 162,000  $ - 
08/09/00 State Trust Fund Loan - 5.25%   355,080   355,080   - 
06/01/01 Promissory Note - 4.10 - 4.60%   1,025,000   1,025,000   - 
06/01/01 Promissory Note - 4.10 - 4.60%   154,427   154,427   - 
06/15/03 Promissory Note - 3.00 - 3.375%   292,105   292,105   - 
06/22/04 State Trust Fund Loan - 4.00%   213,746   213,746   - 
04/14/09 Promissory Note 1.60 - 3.85%   163,392   163,392   - 
04/13/10 G.O. Refunding Bonds - 1.00 - 3.25%   795,000   795,000   - 


          
Total  $ 3,160,750  $ 3,160,750  $ - 


 


  


Original 
Amount 


Borrowed  Repaid  
Balance 
12-31-22 


 
TIF District No. 5          


12/28/16 State Trust Fund Loan - 3.50%  $ 850,000  $ 168,090  $ 681,910 
06/08/17 G.O. Notes - 2.00 - 3.00%   300,000   107,827   192,173 
04/26/18 G.O. Notes - 3.25 - 4.00%   348,750   45,000   303,750 


          
Total  $ 1,498,750  $ 320,917  $ 1,177,833 


 
Aggregate maturities are as follows: 
 


  Principal  Interest Total 


 
Calendar years:          


2023  $ 115,700  $ 38,500  $ 154,200 
2024   117,673   60,502   178,175 
2025   131,411   30,209   161,620 
2026   136,247   25,836   162,083 
2027    147,745   21,383   169,128 
2028 - 2032   299,664   103,176   402,840 
2033 - 2036   229,393   20,421   249,814 


          
Total  $ 1,177,833  $ 300,027  $ 1,477,860 


 


  


Original 
Amount 


Borrowed  Repaid  
Balance 
12-31-22 


 
TIF District No. 6          


06/08/17 Promissory Notes - 2.00 - 3.00%  $ 505,000  $ 240,000  $ 265,000 
03/26/19 Promissory Notes - 2.125 - 4.00%   2,618,709   291,379   2,327,330 


          
Total  $ 3,123,709  $ 531,379  $ 2,592,330 


 







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 
 


 24 


Aggregate maturities of all long-term debt relating to the District are as follows: 
 


  Principal  Interest  Total 
 


Calendar years:          
2023  $ 350,345  $ 68,109  $ 418,454 
2024   363,793   56,737   420,530 
2025    377,759   44,263   422,022 
2026   391,207   31,528   422,735 
2027   400,172   20,705   420,877 
2028 - 2029   709,054   16,709   725,763 


          
Total  $ 2,592,330  $ 238,051  $ 2,830,381 


 


  


Original 
Amount 


Borrowed  Repaid  
Balance 
12-31-22 


 
TIF District No. 7          


10/21/15 Note Anticipation Notes 1.250%  $ 4,775,000  $ 4,775,000  $ - 
04/26/18 G.O. Bonds - 2.00 - 4.00%   4,090,000   795,000   3,295,000 
06/09/22 G.O. Bonds - 3.00 - 4.00%   700,000   -   700,000 


          
Total  $ 9,565,000  $ 5,570,000  $ 3,995,000 


 
Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:  
 


  Principal  Interest  Total 


 
Calendar years:          


2023  $ 260,000  $ 137,722  $ 397,722 
2024   270,000   122,500   392,500 
2025    270,000   114,400   384,400 
2026   275,000   106,225   381,225 
2027   290,000   96,475   386,475 
2028 - 2032   1,620,000   307,075   1,927,075 
2033 - 2037   825,000   73,225   898,225 
2038 - 2042   185,000   19,100   204,100 


          
Total  $ 3,995,000  $ 976,722  $ 4,971,722 


 


  


Original 
Amount 


Borrowed  Repaid  
Balance 
12-31-22 


 
TIF District No. 8          


04/26/18 G.O. Bonds - 2.00 - 4.00%  $ 426,250  $ 55,000  $ 371,250 
03/26/19 Promissory Notes - 2.125 - 4.00%   302,159   33,621   268,538 
06/09/22 G.O. Bonds - 3.00 - 4.00%   690,000   -   690,000 


          
Total  $ 1,418,409  $ 88,621  $ 1,329,788 


 







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 
 


 25 


Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:  
 


  Principal  Interest  Total 
 


Calendar years:          
2023  $ 127,405  $ 49,324  $ 176,729 
2024   128,957   37,694   166,651 
2025    132,741   32,993   165,734 
2026   137,043   28,138   165,181 
2027   140,828   23,665   164,493 
2028 - 2032   322,814   78,001   400,815 
2033 - 2037   175,000   48,138   223,138 
2038 - 2042   165,000   15,900   180,900 


          
Total  $ 1,329,788  $ 313,853  $ 1,643,641 


 
 
4. Advances From/Due to City General Fund 


The general fund is advancing funds to TIF Districts No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 8 and No. 9. The amount 
advanced is determined by the deficiency of revenues over expenditures and other financing sources 
since the District's inception. No interest is being charged. A repayment schedule has not been 
established.  


 
5. Increment Sharing  


In 2006, the City and joint review board approved sharing increments from TIF District No. 2 (donor 
district, subsequently closed) to TIF District No. 4 (donee district). Transfers were approved to begin in 
2007. State statutes limit the number of years a District may share increments to ten. The increment 
sharing with TIF District No. 4 was allowable for years 2007 through 2009. TIF District No. 2 was closed in 
2009. 


In 2007, the City and joint review board approved sharing increments from TIF District No. 3 (donor 
district) to TIF District No 4 (donee district). Transfers began in 2007 and were valid for a five-year period. 
TIF District No. 3 was closed in 2021. Details of transfers are as follows: 


Years  
TID  


No. 2  
TID  


No. 3  
Total 


Contributions 
 


2007  $ 106,997  $ -  $ 106,997 
2008   94,532   133,893   228,425 
2009   97,243   49,404   146,647 
2010   -   237,402   237,402 
2011   -   685,553   685,553 


          
Total  $ 298,772  $ 1,106,252  $ 1,405,024 


 


In 2021, the City and joint review board approved sharing increments from TIF District No. 4 (donor 
district) to TIF District Nos. 5 and 8 (donee districts). During 2021, TIF District No. 4 contributed $25,000 
and $386,821 to TIF Districts Nos. 5 and 8, respectively. During 2022, TIF District No. 4 contributed 
additional $153,850 and $14,502 to TIF Districts Nos. 5 and 8, respectively. 


 







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 
 


 26 


6. Transfers From Other Funds 


The City has transferred funds to TIF District No. 5 to cover deficits over the years. It is the intent of the 
City to have TIF District No. 5 repay the general fund for these transfers contingent upon future 
availability of funds.  


The following is a historical summary of transfers for TIF District No. 5: 


Year ending December 31:  
2010 $ 100,000 


 
 
7. Developer Agreements 


TIF District No. 6 has entered into a developer agreement with North American Fur Auction (NAFA) where 
the City shall construct the City improvements and provide a noncash development incentive, by 
conveying a piece of land in the amount of $377,000. The City fulfilled its obligation during 2017. During 
2020, NAFA declared bankruptcy. 


TIF District No. 7 has entered into a developer agreement where the TID shall reimburse Developer for 
off-site public improvements in the amount of $3,763,230. The City fulfilled its obligation during 2017. 


 
8. Developer Payments  


During 2022, TIF District No. 7 has made a developer agreement to Kettle Park West, LLC of $804,118. 


No developer payments were made by TIF District Nos. 4, 5, 6, 8 and 9 for 2022. 


 
9. Guaranteed Revenue  


TIF District No. 4 had entered into a development agreement with The Plaza Group (the Developer) for 
the Kegonza Plaza development. The agreement guarantees that the Developer shall pay the difference 
between the guaranteed tax increment and the tax increment actually levied. The guarantee agreement 
shall terminate when the City of Stoughton has collected from the tax increment generated from the 
District or paid under the agreement the full amounts guaranteed. From years 2000 through 2006 the 
Developer failed to generate the required tax increments and, therefore, made payments to the City of 
Stoughton totaling $43,902. As of December 31, 2022, the City of Stoughton has received all agreed-
upon amounts either through actual increment or guaranteed revenue payments. 


TIF District No. 5 has entered into a development agreement with Movin' Out Development, LLC (the 
Developer). The agreement guarantees that the Developer shall pay the difference between the 
guaranteed tax increment and the tax increment actually levied. The guarantee obligation shall terminate 
when the City has collected from the tax increment generated from the District or been paid under this 
agreement the full amount of the project costs of not less than $610,753 plus 5% interest accruing from 
January 1, 2012. Guarantee payments received as of December 31, 2022 were $130,168. 


TIF District No. 6 has entered into a development agreement with NAFA. The agreement guarantees the 
assessed value of NAFA's property will be not less than $1,100,000, $3,500,000 and $5,000,000 by 
January 1, 2018, 2019 and 2021 respectively. Beginning calendar year 2019, NAFA shall pay the 
difference between the guaranteed tax increment on the assessed values and the tax increment actually 
levied. The agreement shall continue until TIF District No. 6 has terminated. As noted above, NAFA 
declared bankruptcy in 2020. Total guarantee payments received as of December 31, 2022 were 
$52,159, with a final payment of $35,000 received in 2022. 







City of Stoughton 
Tax Incremental District No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 and No. 9 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 
 


 27 


TIF District No. 6 has entered into a development agreement with GIP-Glacier Moraine, LLC (the 
Developer). The agreement guarantees that the Developer shall pay the difference between the 
guaranteed tax increment and the tax increment actually levied. The guarantee obligation shall terminate 
on December 15, 2024, when the City has collected from the tax increment generated from the District or 
been paid under this agreement the full amount of the project costs of not less than $550,000. Increments 
generated as of December 31, 2022 were $125,220. 


TIF District No. 7 has entered into a development agreement with Kettle Park West, LLC (KPW). The 
agreement guarantees that beginning in calendar year 2018, the actual tax increment will be sufficient to 
fully pay the annual debt service on City borrowing. The Developer shall pay the difference between the 
guaranteed tax increment and the tax increment actually levied. The guarantee obligation shall terminate 
in 2034 or when the TIF District No. 7 has been terminated - whichever is sooner. TIF guarantee 
payments received in years 2019-2021 was $98,108. TIF guarantee payment received in 2022 was 
$29,651. 


 
10. Municipal Revenue Obligation  


In 2020, the City issued a municipal revenue obligation as part of a development agreement. The amount 
of the obligation was $3,000,000 and is payable to the Developer solely from tax increments collected 
from a specific portion of the development in TIF District No.7. 


Payments are scheduled through the year 2035 or when TIF District No. 7 has been terminated, 
whichever is sooner and carry an interest rate of 6%. The obligation does not constitute a charge upon 
any funds of the City. In the event that future tax increments are not sufficient to pay off the obligation, the 
obligation terminates with no further liability to the City. Since the amount of future payments is contingent 
on the collection of future TIF increments, the obligation is not reported as a liability in the accompanying 
financial statements. During 2022, the City paid $804,118 and the balance of the commitment outstanding 
at year end was $2,195,882. 


In 2014, the City entered into a similar municipal revenue obligation developer agreement in the amount 
of $550,000. TIF District No. 7 paid the entire amount in 2021.  





		12 R-115-2023 Acceptance of Tax Incremental Districts financial statements 12-31-2022.pdf

		12a City of Stoughton Comp TIFs 4-9, 12-31-22 FINAL.pdf







